
 
 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
Tuesday, April 28, 2015                                                                                                        City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                                            16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
Note:  A Joint Meeting with the Human Services Commission is scheduled from 6:00 to 7:00 p.m. 

CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 

• National Aquatics Month Proclamation – May 2015 (Bahl) 
• Arbor Day Proclamation (Laura Morrissey) 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, 
not the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes 
per speaker.  Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  March 24, 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-3. Accept Aquatic Center Roofing Project (Thomas) 
C-4. Approve Consultant Contract for 2015 Comprehensive Plan Update (Hart) 
C-5. Approve Amendment to Extend Contract for Park Maintenance (Vondran) 
C-6. Ratify City Manager Signature on Landscaping Maintenance Contract (Vondran) 
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS 

• Human Services Chair Fran McGregor:  April 9 meeting 
• Parks & Recreation Chair Laura Morrissey:  April 15 meeting 
• Arts Chair Lesli Cohan:  April 9 meeting 
• Planning Chair Bill Judd:  April 2 meeting; April 16 meeting canceled 
• Economic Development Council Co-Chair Jeff Wagner:  March 26 and April 23 meetings 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
1. Discuss Mandatory Garbage Collection (Vondran) 
2. Update on Jenkins Creek Park Pedestrian and ADA Improvements Project Design (Vondran) 
3. Adopt Resolution Supporting Transportation Investment Package (Bolli) 
4. Consider Policy for Use of City Seal and Logo (Bolli) 

 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�


PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – if needed 
 
ADJOURN 
 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act – Reasonable Accommodations Provided Upon Request a minimum of 24 hours in advance 
(253-480-2400) 
 
 



Consent Agenda Item C-1 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date:  April 28, 2015   
 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  MARCH 24, 2015 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR 

MEETING MINUTES 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Sharon G. Scott, City Clerk 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  Proposed Minutes 
 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION:  
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance   _____ Resolution     X     Motion              Other  
 

Councilmember __________ moves, Councilmember ___________ 
seconds, to approve the March 24, 2015, City Council Regular 
Meeting Minutes. 

1 of 106



Unapproved Draft–March 24, 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  April 28, 2015 
 

 1 

City of Covington 
Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, March 24, 2015 
 
(This meeting was recorded and will be retained for a period of six years from the date of the 
meeting). 
 
The Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Covington was called to order in the City 
Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, March 
24, 2015, at 7:05 p.m., with Mayor Harto presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Margaret Harto, Joe Cimaomo, Mark Lanza, Marlla Mhoon, Jim Scott, Sean Smith, and Jeff 
Wagner. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Regan Bolli, City Manager; Don Vondran, Public Works Director; Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director; 
Kevin Klason, Covington Police Chief; Richard Hart, Community Development Director; Karla Slate, 
Communications & Marketing Manager; Scott Thomas, Parks & Recreation Director; Sara Springer, 
City Attorney; Bob Lindskov, City Engineer; Darren Mhoon, Management Assistant; Angie 
Feser, Parks Planner; Bill Fealy, Maintenance Worker – Arborist; and Sharon Scott, City 
Clerk/Executive Assistant. 
 
Mayor Harto opened the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
approve the Agenda.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION: 

• Doug Osterman, Watershed Coordinator, Green/Duwamish and Central Puget Sound 
Watershed (WRIA 9) gave a presentation on WRIA 9:  Continuing Watershed-Based 
Restoration and Salmon Recovery in Covington. 
 

• Council presented proclamations to Japanese exchange students and teachers from Abuno 
High School and Kitano High School in Osaka, Japan, in recognition of March 24, 2015 
as International Student Exchange Day in Covington. 
 

Council recessed from 7:35 to 7:53 p.m. for a brief reception to welcome the exchange students 
and teachers. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:   
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
Patricia Lynch, 17015 SE Wax Road, Covington, thanked Council for the speed trailer placed 
on Wax Road. 
 

2 of 106



Unapproved Draft–March 24, 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  April 28, 2015 
 

 2 

There being no further comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA: 
C-1. Minutes:  March 10, 2015 City Council Special & Regular Meeting Minutes. 

 
C-2. Vouchers: Vouchers #32243-32295, including ACH Payments and Electronic Funds 

Transfers, in the Amount of $141,489.51, Dated March 6, 2015; and Paylocity Payroll 
Checks #1003500497-1003500511 inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the 
Amount of $166,794.65, Dated March 13, 2015. 
 

Council Action:  Councilmember Mhoon moved and Councilmember Scott seconded to 
approve the Consent Agenda:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS
Human Services Commission – Chair Fran McGregor reported on the February 12 and March 
12 meetings. 

: 

 
Parks & Recreation Commission – Vice Chair Bryan Higgins reported on the March 18 
meeting. 
 
Arts Commission – Chair Lesli Cohan reported on the March 12 meeting. 
 
Planning Commission – Chair Bill Judd reported on the March 5 meeting.  The March 19 
meeting was canceled. 
 
Economic Development Council – Co-Chair Jeff Wagner reported on the February 26 meeting. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
1.  Consider Contract with MacLeod Reckord for Park Design Services. 
 
Parks Planner Angie Feser gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Ms. Feser and Parks & 
Recreation Director Scott Thomas provided responses. 
 
Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Cimaomo seconded 
to authorize the City Manager to execute a contract between the City of Covington and 
MacLeod Reckord, in substantial form as that included in the agenda packet, to complete 
additional design for the City’s Covington Community Park.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
2.  Consider Approval of Parks, Recreation and Open Space (PROS) Plan Consultant. 
 
Parks Planner Angie Feser gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Ms. Feser and Parks & 
Recreation Director Scott Thomas provided responses. 
 

3 of 106



Unapproved Draft–March 24, 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  April 28, 2015 
 

 3 

Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Scott seconded to 
authorize the City Manager to execute a contract with Conservation Technix, in substantial 
form as that included in the agenda packet, to complete the Parks, Recreation and Open 
Space Plan update.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
3.  Approve Contract for Design of Town Center, City Hall and Public Plaza. 
 
Community Development Director Richard Hart gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Mr. Hart and City Attorney Sara 
Springer provided responses. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Lanza moved and Councilmember Cimaomo seconded to 
approve the consultant contract and associated scope of services with Helix Design Group 
to complete a concept design study and drawings of the proposed Covington Town Center 
and authorize the city manager to sign such contract in substantially the same form as that 
included in the agenda packet.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
4.  Clarify Use of City Seal and Logo. 
 
City Manager Regan Bolli and Communications & Marketing Manager Karla Slate gave the staff 
report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and discussed this item. 
 
Councilmember Lanza moved to adopt the language proposed in the agenda packet and for the 
official seal to remain behind the dais and to be displayed on the flag in front of city hall.  There 
was no second. 
 
Councilmember Mhoon moved and Councilmember Lanza seconded to adopt the language 
proposed in the agenda packet and for the official seal to remain behind the dais. 
 
Councilmembers continued comments and discussion. 
 
City Attorney Sara Springer provided comments to councilmembers for clarification purposes. 
 
Councilmember Mhoon withdrew her motion. 
 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to request staff to create a draft policy based 
on the Council’s discussion and bring back to the next meeting for Council’s consideration. 
 
5.  Presentation of 2014 Year End Financials. 
 
Finance Director Rob Hendrickson gave the staff report on this item. 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS: 
Councilmembers and staff discussed Future Agenda Topics and made comments. 

4 of 106



Unapproved Draft–March 24, 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  April 28, 2015 
 

 4 

 
Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Smith seconded to 
cancel the April 14 meeting due to lack of business items.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
There being no comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 9:46 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 
 

5 of 106



Consent Agenda Item C-2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  April 28, 2015 
 
SUBJECT:  APPROVAL OF VOUCHERS  
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S)

 

:  Vouchers #32296-32360, including ACH Payments and Electronic Funds 
Transfers, in the Amount of $292,971.37, Dated March 20, 2015; Vouchers #32361-32410, 
including ACH Payments, in the Amount of $168,805.40, Dated April 3, 2015; Vouchers 
#32411-32470, including ACH Payments and Electronic Funds Transfers, in the Amount of 
$144,492.77, Dated April 17, 2015; Paylocity Payroll Checks #1003551981-1003551998 
inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of $171,351.63, Dated March 27, 
2015; Paylocity Payroll Checks #1003606428-1003606444 inclusive, Plus Employee Direct 
Deposits in the Amount of $167,608.65, Dated April 10, 2015; and Paylocity Payroll Checks 
#1003658969-1003658988 and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1003659084-1003659084 inclusive, 
Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of $177,457.36, Dated April 24, 2015. 

PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION: Not applicable. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Not applicable. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance _____ Resolution     X      Motion            Other  

 
Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember _________________ 
seconds, to approve for payment Vouchers #32296-32360, including ACH 
Payments and Electronic Funds Transfers, in the Amount of $292,971.37, 
Dated March 20, 2015; Vouchers #32361-32410, including ACH Payments, 
in the Amount of $168,805.40, Dated April 3, 2015; Vouchers #32411-
32470, including ACH Payments and Electronic Funds Transfers, in the 
Amount of $144,492.77, Dated April 17, 2015; Paylocity Payroll Checks 
#1003551981-1003551998 inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the 
Amount of $171,351.63, Dated March 27, 2015; Paylocity Payroll Checks 
#1003606428-1003606444 inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the 
Amount of $167,608.65, Dated April 10, 2015; and Paylocity Payroll 
Checks #1003658969-1003658988 and Paylocity Payroll Checks 
#1003659084-1003659084 inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the 
Amount of $177,457.36, Dated April 24, 2015. 
 
 

 

6 of 106



7 of 106



8 of 106



9 of 106



10 of 106



11 of 106



12 of 106



13 of 106



14 of 106



15 of 106



16 of 106



17 of 106



18 of 106



19 of 106



20 of 106



21 of 106



22 of 106



23 of 106



24 of 106



25 of 106



26 of 106



27 of 106



28 of 106



29 of 106



30 of 106



31 of 106



32 of 106



33 of 106



34 of 106



35 of 106



36 of 106



37 of 106



38 of 106



39 of 106



40 of 106



41 of 106



42 of 106



43 of 106



44 of 106



45 of 106



46 of 106



47 of 106



48 of 106



Consent Agenda Item C-3 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  April 28, 2015 
 
SUBJECT
 

:   FINAL ACCEPTANCE OF AQUATIC CENTER ROOFING PROJECT 

RECOMMENDED BY
                                           

:  Scott Thomas, Parks and Recreation Director 

1. Notice of Completion of Public Works Contract 
ATTACHMENT(S) 

 
PREPARED BY
 

: Scott Thomas, Parks and Recreation Director 

EXPLANATION
On August 12, 2014, the council awarded the Aquatic Center Roofing Project (the “Project”) to 
the lowest responsible bidder, Meyer Brothers Roofing (the “Contractor”), in the amount of 
$111,861.80 (this amount includes one amendment). The scope of the Project was to repair 
existing roof drains on the Aquatic Center and apply a new layer of roofing. 

:  

 
The Contractor has physically completed work on the Project and city staff performed a final 
inspection and determined that the Project has been completed within the amended budget—the 
final expended amount was $106.877.06. City staff has also determined that the Contractor has 
satisfactorily completed the work in accordance with the Project’s contract documents. The city 
has received no

 

 claims from the Contractor for additional compensation for additional work, 
changed conditions, or extended overhead.  

Staff recommends for the council to formally accept the work of the Contractor for the Project. 
With council’s final acceptance, and upon the Contractor’s submission to the state Department of 
Labor and Industries of all affidavits of prevailing wages paid for the Project, city staff will 
submit the attached Notice of Completion for the Project (Attachment 1) and will release the 
project retainage sixty (60) days after the final Project acceptance date of April 28, 2015. 
 
ALTERNATIVES
 

:    NA 

FISCAL IMPACT
The awarded contract amount, including one amendment, was $111,861.80. The final expended 
amount was $106,877.06. The Project finished under budget because some tasks included in the 
bid were deemed unnecessary and because we did not need to utilize any of the contingency 
funds. 

:    

 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION: ____Ordinance              Resolution      X    
 

Motion _____Other 

Councilmember _____________ moves, Councilmember _________________ 
seconds, to formally accept the Aquatic Center Roofing Project, performed 
under the contract with Meyer Brothers Roofing, as completed, subject to all 
contractual warranties, with the date of final acceptance and contract 
completion date of April 28, 2015.  
 

REVIEWED BY:  C ity Manager; City Attorney; Community Development Director, Finance 
Director 

49 of 106



Revised #

Assigned to:

UBI Number:

Yes No

Yes  

Were Subcontracters used on this project? If so, please complete Addendum A.            Yes No

$
$ $
$ $
$ $

8.600%
$
$ $

Contact Name: Title:

City of Covington
16720 SE 271st Street, Ste 100
Covington, WA  98042

Email Address: Phone Number:

Contractor's UBI Number: 

Senior Accountant

253-480-2421

Casey Parker

Date Work Accepted

Sub-Total

106,877.06

5,343.85

 

Additions    ( + )

Amount Retained

11-6-2014

8,463.56

100,573.50

Reductions  ( - )

Note: The Disbursing Officer must submit this completed notice immediately after acceptance of the work done under this contract.
NO PAYMENT SHALL BE MADE FROM RETAINED FUNDS until receipt of all release certificates.                                                                                                                                                                                                                          
Submitting Form: Please submit the completed form by email to all three agencies below. 

TOTAL

2,430.46
4,590.46
98,413.50

Liquidated Damages
101,533.21

106,877.06

Meyer Brothers Roofing

NOTICE OF COMPLETION OF PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACT

Project Name
Aquatic Center Roofing Project

Date Assigned:

Job Order Contracting

Federally funded transportation project?           

Repair existing roof drains and apply a new layer of roofing

Contractor's Name

Description of Work Done/Include Jobsite Address(es)

Affidavit ID*
No          (if yes, provide Contract Bond Statement below)

Name & Mailing Address of Public Agency

E-mail Address

Contract Number
Notice is hereby given relative to the completion of contract or project described below

Date:

 

Retainage Bond Contract/Payment bond (valid for federally funded transportation projects)
Name:    

Amount of Sales Tax 

Contract Amount

Department Use Only

Original

601-802-997

3-1-2015

NOTE: These two totals must be equal
TOTAL

accounting@meyerbrothersroofing.co 565182

18211 E. Valley Highway, Kent, WA  98032

8-12-2014

cparker@covingtonwa.gov

Comments:

(If various rates apply, please send a breakdown)

Telephone #
253-638-7894

Bond Number:

If Retainage is not withheld, please select one of the following and List Surety's Name & Bond Number.

Date Work Commenced Date Work Completed

Contractor Address

Date Contract Awarded

     Affidavit ID* - No L&I release will be granted until all affidavits are listed.

Amount Disbursed

Contract Release 
(855) 545-8163, option # 4 
ContractRelease@LNI.WA.GOV 
 

Employment Security 
Department 
Registration, Inquiry, 
Standards & Coordination 
Unit 
(360) 902-9450 
publicworks@esd wa gov 

Department of Revenue 
Public Works Section 
(360) 704-5650 
PWC@dor.wa.gov 

                                             ATTACHMENT 1

50 of 106



Consent Agenda Item C-4 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  April 28, 2015 
 
SUBJECT

 

: AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH STALZER AND ASSOCIATES FOR 
CONSULTING SERVICES RELATING TO COMPLETION OF THE GMA 
REQUIRED COVINGTON COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE.  

RECOMMENDED BY
                                           

:  Richard Hart, Community Development Director 

1. Proposed Professional Services Agreement with Exhibit A Scope of Work & Exhibit B 
Consultant Hourly Rates. 

ATTACHMENT(S) 

 
PREPARED BY
 

: Richard Hart, Community Development Director 

EXPLANATION
In May 2014, the City Council approved a contract with Studio Cascade to complete our Growth 
Management Act (GMA) required Comprehensive Plan Update.  Due to non-performance of 
work tasks, the city terminated the contract with Studio Cascade in December 2014.  Since that 
time, Community Development Department staff has met with Stalzer and Associates, the lead 
firm of a team of consultants which came in 2nd as part of our initial staff review of consultant 
teams who we interviewed in response to our Request for Proposal (RFP) last spring.  

:  

 
Staff requested Stalzer and Associates and their team of consultants to evaluate the 
comprehensive plan documents provided by Studio Cascade up until December 2014 and 
provide the city an estimate of what work would be necessary to complete the 2015 
Comprehensive Plan Update.  
 
Due to the quality of work, including significant gaps in baseline information, existing 
conditions data and policy development in the draft materials the city had received from Studio 
Cascade, the city must substantially start from scratch on the actual drafting of the plan, 
including some of the supporting documents.  This will allow us to demonstrate our plan is 
meeting state and regional planning goals and policies, as well as clearly and accurately 
expressing our community’s vision and the path and actions we must take to get there.  Staff was 
also concerned that the quality of the documents being produced by our former consultant might 
not even satisfy both the State Department of Commerce (DOC) and the Puget Sound Regional 
Council (PSRC), both of whom have to review and certify our Comprehensive Plan Update.     
 
Furthermore, given the state of the draft plan documents received from Studio Cascade, and 
keeping in mind that switching consultants on any complicated and expansive planning project 
can result in additional work to integrate and fact check the useable elements of the data and 
documents into a different format used by a new consultant, additional costs are to be expected.  
In addition, a critical step of the timing of final public hearings and approval of the document has 
also been factored into the cost of completing the Comprehensive Plan Update.   

51 of 106



 
City staff negotiated a new contract and Scope of Work (Attachment 1) with Stalzer and 
Associates to complete the remaining work to satisfy our obligation under the state GMA for the 
2015 Comprehensive Plan Update.  Based on the cost estimate provided by Stalzer and 
Associates, as the project lead for a team of consultants (including BERK Consulting, 
HEFFRON Transportation and The Watershed Company), they will need a total of $96,000 to 
complete this comprehensive plan work.  Currently there is $60,000 in the 2015 community 
development budget from the general fund allocated for this work item.  The remaining $36,000 
to fund the project is proposed to be taken from the development services fund.   
 
The new Scope of Work and timeline with Stalzer and Associates envision completion by 
November 2015, which is a 4-month delay from the previously anticipated July 2015 completion 
date with Studio Cascade.  After extensive internal staff discussions with Stalzer and Associates, 
staff is confident, given our past work product provided by Stalzer and his team, that the city can 
quickly move forward with completing the Comprehensive Plan.  
 
ALTERNATIVES

1) Direct staff to explore alternatives to complete the Comprehensive Plan with existing 
staff resources, which would result in delaying other high priority projects during 2015 
or not completing the Comprehensive Plan Update until 2016.  

:   

 
FISCAL IMPACT
It is proposed to take the additional $36,000 from the Development Services Fund, which has a 
healthy fund balance over $1.8 million, resulting from recent project permits including the Inland 
Mixed-Use Development and the Cedar Springs Residential Apartment.  There is the possibility 
that the department budget could absorb the additional funds through other line item savings.  An 
appropriate adjustment to the 2015 budget will be made if necessary at the end of this year.  

:    

 
Impacts from delaying our completion date beyond July 1, which was the State Department of 
Commerce imposed deadline, are minimal to the city.  If the city were to apply for any parks 
grant, we might not be eligible if the award date were to fall within the 4-month period we hadn’t 
completed our Plan.  However, the Parks Department does not feel they will be applying for any 
grants during this short period of time this fall.  
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION: ____Ordinance              Resolution      X    
 

Motion _____Other 

Councilmember _____________ moves, Councilmember _________________ 
seconds, to authorize the City Manager to execute a professional services 
agreement with Stalzer & Associates, in substantial form as that attached 
hereto, for consulting services relating to completion of the city’s GMA 
required 2015 Comprehensive Plan Update.   
 

REVIEWED BY
 City Attorney 

: City Manager 

 Community Development Director 
 Finance Director 

52 of 106



 
Page 1 of 4 

City of Covington—Professional Services Agreement v.1—Approved as to Form as of 08Jan2015 

Contract No. __________ 
CITY OF COVINGTON 

CONSULTANT AGREEMENT 
 
 THIS AGREEMENT is entered into this 29th day of April, 2015 (“Effective Date”), by and between the City of 
Covington, Washington, a Washington municipal corporation (the “City"), and Stalzer and Associates, (the 
“Consultant”), a sole proprietorship. The City and the Consultant are collectively referred to in this Agreement as 
the “Parties”. 

 WHEREAS, the City has determined the need to have certain professional services performed for its citizens 
but does not have the manpower or expertise to perform such services; and  

 WHEREAS, the City desires to have the Consultant perform such professional services pursuant to certain 
terms and conditions; now, therefore,  

 IN CONSIDERATION OF the mutual benefits and conditions hereinafter contained, the Parties hereto agree 
as follows: 

1. Scope of Services.  The Consultant shall perform those services described on Exhibit A, Scope of Services, 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference (the “Services”), performed to the City’s satisfaction, 
within the time period prescribed by the City, pursuant to the direction of the City, and up to the limit of available 
funds. In performing the Services, the Consultant shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws and 
regulations, including, without limitation, all City codes, ordinances, resolutions, standards, and policies, as now 
existing or hereafter adopted or amended, that may be applicable to its performance. The Consultant shall not 
modify in any way the scope or schedule of the Services without the prior written approval of the City. Time is of 
the essence in every aspect of performance of the Services. 
 
2. Term of Agreement.  This Agreement shall be in full force and effect from the Effective Date through and 
until December 31, 2015, unless sooner terminated under the provisions hereinafter specified. 
 
3. Compensation and Method of Payment.  The total amount to be paid under this Agreement shall not 
exceed ninety six thousand dollars ($96,000). The City shall pay the Consultant for Services rendered on a time 
and expenses basis based upon the Consultant’s rates as indicated on Exhibit B, Stalzer and Associates 2015 
Schedule of Standard Fees and Reimbursable Expenses (the “Rates”), attached hereto and incorporated herein by 
this reference, and upon receipt of invoice from the Consultant. The Consultant shall not amend the Rates in any 
way without prior written approval from the City. Payment will only be made by the City after the Services have 
been satisfactorily performed, an invoice is submitted in a form acceptable to the City, and the same is approved 
by the appropriate City representative. Payment by the City shall be made no later than ten (10) days after said 
approval. Prior to or along with the first invoice submitted, the Consultant shall return to the City a completed 
“Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification,” also known as IRS form W-9. The Consultant shall 
be solely responsible for the payment of any taxes imposed by any lawful jurisdiction as a result of the 
performance and payment of this Agreement. 
 
4. Independent Contractor.  It is the intention and understanding of the City and the Consultant that the 
Consultant shall be an independent contractor and that nothing in this Agreement shall be considered to create 
the relation of employer and employee or principal and agent between the Parties hereto. The City shall be 
neither liable nor obligated to pay the Consultant sick leave, vacation pay, or any other benefit of employment 
and the Consultant shall pay all income and other taxes due. The Consultant shall be solely responsible for its acts 
and for the acts of its agents, employees, sub-consultants, or representatives during the performance of this 
Agreement.  The Consultant shall have the sole judgment of the means, mode, or manner of the actual 
performance of this Agreement. The Consultant, as an independent contractor, assumes the entire responsibility 
for carrying out and accomplishing this Agreement. 

 
5. Warranty.  The Consultant warrants that it has the requisite training, skill, and experience necessary to 
provide the Services and is appropriately accredited and licensed by all applicable agencies and governmental 
entities, as applicable. The Consultant shall be responsible for the professional quality, timely completion, and 
coordination of all work products prepared or performed as part of the Services under this Agreement. The 
Consultant shall perform its work in accordance with the requirements of this Agreement and pursuant to the 
standards of professional care, skill, diligence, and competence as are normally exercised by other members 

ATTACHMENT 1

53 of 106



 
 Page 2 of 4 

and/or firms of the profession in good standing working under the same or similar conditions and circumstances 
and in similar communities as the Services provided by the Consultant under this Agreement. The Consultant shall 
be responsible for the professional standards, performance, and actions of all persons and firms performing work 
pursuant to this Agreement on behalf of the Consultant. The City shall also have the right to deduct from 
payments to the Consultant any costs or damages incurred by the City, or which may be incurred by the City, as a 
result of the Consultant’s failure to comply with the requirements of this Agreement or failure to meet the 
professional standard of care and skill, or both. Neither the City’s review, approval, acceptance of, and/or 
payment for any Services shall be construed to operate as a waiver of any rights under this Agreement or of any 
cause of action arising out of the performance of this Agreement.   
 
6. Ownership and Use of Documents. Any and all original records, reports, designs, files, documents, drawings, 
specifications, data, or information, regardless of form or format or if finished or unfinished, and all other 
materials prepared or produced by the Consultant in connection with the Services under this Agreement (the 
“Materials”) shall be the property of the City whether the project or purpose for which they were created is 
executed or not. At the termination or expiration of this Agreement, and at the written request of the City, any 
and all such Materials or information remaining in the possession of the Consultant shall be delivered to the City 
in their original format, or any other available format as requested by the City, within five (5) business days. No 
confidential information obtained or created by the Consultant shall be disclosed to any person or party other 
than the City without the City’s prior written consent. 

 
7. Record Keeping and Reporting. The Consultant shall maintain accounts and records, including personnel, 
property, financial, and programmatic records, which sufficiently and properly reflect all direct and indirect costs 
associated with performance of the Services required under this Agreement and other such records as may be 
deemed necessary by the City to ensure the performance of this Agreement for a period of six (6) years from 
completion of all services. The records and documents with respect to all matters covered by this Agreement shall 
be subject at all times to inspection, review, or audit by law during the performance of this Agreement. 
 
8. Indemnification.  The Consultant shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the City, its officers, agents, and 
employees, from and against any and all claims for damages, losses, or liability, including attorney's fees, arising 
from the negligent act, omission, or failure of the Consultant, its officers, agents, and employees, in performing 
the Services under this Agreement.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the maximum liability of 
Consultant to City pursuant to this Section 8 shall be equal to the maximum consideration payable to Consultant 
under this Agreement.  WITH RESPECT TO THE PERFORMANCE OF THIS AGREEMENT AND AS TO CLAIMS AGAINST 
THE CITY, ITS OFFICERS, AGENTS, AND EMPLOYEES, THE CONSULTANT EXPRESSLY WAIVES ITS IMMUNITY UNDER 
TITLE 51 OF THE REVISED CODE OF WASHINGTON, THE INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE ACT, FOR INJURIES TO ITS 
EMPLOYEES, AND AGREES THAT THE OBLIGATION TO INDEMNIFY, DEFEND, AND HOLD HARMLESS PROVIDED FOR 
IN THIS PARAGRAPH EXTENDS TO ANY CLAIM BROUGHT BY OR ON BEHALF OF ANY EMPLOYEE OF THE 
CONSULTANT. THIS WAIVER IS MUTUALLY NEGOTIATED BY THE PARTIES.  This paragraph shall not apply to any 
damage resulting from the sole negligence of the City, its agents, and employees. To the extent any of the 
damages referenced by this paragraph were caused by or resulted from the concurrent negligence of the City, its 
agents, or employees, the Consultant’s obligation to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the City is valid and 
enforceable only to the extent of the negligence of the Consultant, its officers, agents, and employees. The 
provisions of this section shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

9. Insurance.  The Consultant shall at a minimum procure and maintain for the duration of this Agreement  
the following insurance against claims which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the 
Services hereunder by the Consultant, its agents, representatives, or employees and in such forms and with such 
carriers who have a rating satisfactory to the City [required insurance coverage under this Agreement is indicated 
with a checkmark – if not required, indicate with “NA”]: 
 

9.1.  _X___ Commercial General Liability. Commercial general liability insurance covering liability arising 
from premises, operations, independent contractors, personal injury, and advertising injury and written 
on ISO occurrence form CG 00 01 with combined single limits of liability not less than $1,000,000 each 
occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate for bodily injury, including personal injury or death, products 
liability, and property damage.  

54 of 106



 
Page 3 of 4 

City of Covington—Professional Services Agreement v.1—Approved as to Form as of 08Jan2015 

9.2. _X___ Automobile Liability. Automobile liability insurance covering all owned, non-owned, hired, and 
leased vehicles and written on Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CA 00 01 or a substitute form 
providing equivalent liability coverage with combined single limits of liability not less than $1,000,000 per 
accident for bodily injury, including personal injury or death and property damage.  If necessary, the 
policy shall be endorsed to provide contractual liability coverage.   

  
9.3. Additional Insurance Terms and Requirements. 

9.3.1. The City shall be named as additional insured on all above required insurance policies, with the 
exception of professional liability and workers' compensation coverage(s) if the Consultant 
participates in a state-run workers’ comp program.   

9.3.2. Required insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best rating of not less than A: 
VII.  

9.3.3. All required insurance policies shall contain a clause of endorsement providing that they may not be 
terminated or materially amended during the Term of this Agreement, except after thirty (30) days 
prior written notice to the City. If the Consultant's insurance policies are "claims made," the 
Consultant shall be required to maintain tail coverage for a minimum period of three (3) years from 
the date of this Agreement is actually terminated or upon project completion and acceptance by the 
City.   

9.3.4. The Consultant shall provide original certificates of insurance and a copy of the amendatory 
endorsement, concurrent with the execution of this Agreement, evidencing such above required 
coverage and, at the City's request, furnish the City with copies of all insurance policies and with 
evidence of payment of premiums or fees of such policies.  The Consultant’s maintenance of 
insurance as required above shall not be construed to limit the liability of the Consultant to the 
coverage provided by such insurance, or otherwise limit the City’s recourse to any remedy available 
at law or in equity. The Consultant's failure to maintain such insurance policies as required above 
shall be grounds for the City's immediate termination of this Agreement. The provisions of this 
Section shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement with respect to any event 
occurring prior to such expiration or termination. 

10. Termination.  This Agreement may be terminated by either party without cause at any time upon written 
notice to the other. Upon termination, all finished or unfinished Materials prepared by the Consultant pursuant to 
this Agreement shall be submitted to the City pursuant to Section 6 herein. The Consultant shall be entitled to 
payment for all Services satisfactorily performed and reimbursable expenses incurred to the date of termination.  
 
11. Discrimination Prohibited.  The Consultant shall not discriminate against any employee, applicant for 
employment, or any person seeking the services of the Consultant to be provided under this Agreement on the 
basis of race, color, religion, creed, sex, age, national origin, marital status or presence of any sensory, mental or 
physical handicap. 
 
12. Assignment and Subcontract.  The Consultant shall not assign or subcontract any portion of the Services 
contemplated by this Agreement without the prior written consent of the City. 
 
13. Entire Agreement /Amendments.  This Agreement contains the entire Agreement between the Parties and 
no other agreements, oral or otherwise, regarding the subject matter of this Agreement shall be deemed to exist 
or bind any of the Parties. This Agreement may not be modified or amended except by writing signed by all 
Parties hereto.   
 
14. No Waiver.  Failure or delay of the City to declare any breach or default immediately upon occurrence shall 
not waive such breach or default. Failure of the City to declare one breach or default does not act as a waiver of 

55 of 106



 
 Page 4 of 4 

the City's right to declare another breach or default. 
 
15. Severability.  Each and every provision of this Agreement shall be deemed to be severable. The invalidity or 
unenforceability of any particular provision of this Agreement shall not affect the other provisions hereof and the 
Agreement shall be construed in all respects as if such invalid or unenforceable provision were not a part of this 
Agreement.  
 
16. Notices.  All notices, payments, and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be 
deemed to have been duly given if emailed, personally delivered, or mailed, by first class or certified mail, with 
postage prepaid to the relevant address included in the signature block below, or to such other person or place as 
one party shall furnish to the other in writing. Notices and payments shall be deemed given upon receipt of email 
or personal delivery or, if mailed, upon the earlier of actual receipt or three (3) business days after the date of 
mailing. 
 
17. Governing Law / Venue / Attorneys’ Fees.  This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws 
of the State of Washington. The venue for any cause of action arising out of this Agreement shall be King County, 
Washington. The prevailing party in any such action shall be entitled to its costs and attorneys’ fees. 
 
18. Independent Counsel.  The Consultant acknowledges that the drafter of this Agreement is the City’s legal 
representative to whom the Consultant does not look to for any legal counseling or legal advice with regard to 
this transaction. The Consultant further acknowledges that it has been advised to consult with independent legal 
counsel and has had an opportunity to do so. By signing this Agreement, the Consultant acknowledges that it has 
consulted with independent legal counsel of its choice or has knowingly waived the right to do so. There shall be 
no presumption of draftsmanship in favor of or implied against any party hereto. 
 
19. Authority / Counterparts.  Each individual executing this Agreement on behalf of the City and the Consultant 
represents and warrants that such individuals are duly authorized to execute and deliver this Agreement on 
behalf of the Consultant or the City. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts and as 
executed shall constitute one agreement binding on all Parties, notwithstanding that all Parties are not a signatory 
to the same counterpart. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement on the above Effective Date. 
 
CITY OF COVINGTON  CONSULTANT 
 
 
   ______________________________________ 
 
By: Regan Bolli  By: ___________________________________ 
Title:  City Manager   Title: __________________________________ 
16720 SE 271st Street, Suite100  Address: _______________________________ 
Covington, WA 98042  _______________________________________ 
Email: rbolli@covingtonwa.gov            Email: _________________________________ 
 
ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED:   
   
 
  
Sharon Scott, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
Office of the City Attorney 
 
 
By: _____________________________________ 

56 of 106



Stalzer and Associates / BERK Consulting, Inc. April 23, 2015 1 

EXHIBIT A  
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

COVINGTON COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

PROJECT APPROACH 
The City of Covington (the City) has requested a scope of services addressing its Comprehensive Plan 
Update. Stalzer and Associates (prime) and BERK Consulting (subconsultant) will work with subject 
matter experts on transportation, environmental science, and infrastructure serving as either 
subcontractors to the prime and/or as oncall consultants on City contract. References to “our” and “we” 
mean the Consultant team collectively as led by the prime. 
Our approach and work plan are structured to address the shortcomings in the current Preliminary Draft 
Comprehensive Plan and to work collaboratively with City staff to achieve a complete, compliant, 
readable, action-oriented, and useful Comprehensive Plan.  Our approach includes the following phases 
and review process: 
PHASES 
Phase 1 Situation Assessment and Plan Basics (April-June)  

• Establish the sequence and schedule for delivery of Elements 
• Confirm and develop cross-cutting framework policies or guiding principles 
• Establish a revised document format template 
• Complete the Existing Conditions Report with data and trends  
• Update the Washington State Department of Commerce Checklist 
• Prepare a legislative review and public engagement process suited to the Draft Comprehensive 

Plan process,  
Number of Meetings: 2 
Budget: $15,845 

 
Phase 2 Completion of a Draft Comprehensive Plan (May- September) 

• Develop elements collaboratively with staff and service providers 
• Share early drafts with the public 
Number of Meetings: 5-6 (3-4 with staff, 1 public meeting, 1 Planning Commission meetings) Note: 
Appropriate team members will participate as necessary. 
Budget: $74,500 

 
Phase 3 SEPA (July-September) 

• Review City-prepared SEPA checklist or EIS Addendum and associated notices 
12 
Number of Meetings: None 
Budget: $1,950 

 
Phase 4 Adoption of the updated Comprehensive Plan (October-December) 

• Prepare a public hearing draft plan for Planning Commission and City Council action. 
• Assist staff with revisions for final plan adoption 
Number of Meetings: None 
Budget: $2,200 
 

Total for All Phases: $94,495 excluding Task 2-9 Shoreline Master Program Integration 
Budget Summary 

Allowance for Project Expenses:  $900 

57 of 106



 CITY OF COVINGTON  
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 2015 

Stalzer and Associates / BERK Consulting, Inc.  FINAL DRAFT April 23, 2015 2 

Total Project Budget: $95,395 
 

REVIEW PROCESS 
1. As we complete preliminary drafts of revised individual elements, they will be submitted to City staff 

for review and comment.  Only completed preliminary drafts of entire elements and related 
appendices, if any, will be submitted.   The sequence and schedule for delivery of preliminary draft 
elements will be decided with staff at a meeting in Phase I. 

2. City staff will respond with one consolidated set of review comments and revisions.   
3. We will contact City staff via email or telephone with questions or concerns about the City staff’s 

comments and/or revisions.  If necessary, we will schedule a conference call to discuss issues.   
4. Based on the review comments and any subsequent discussions, we will revise the preliminary draft 

element and deliver a completed draft element.  Barring technical corrections, this will be the draft 
element presented to the Planning Commission (see below).   

5. When an appropriate number of draft elements has been completed, we will discuss them with the 
Planning Commission at a workshop meeting.  The sequence and schedule for the discussion of the 
draft elements will be decided with City staff at the meeting in Phase I.   

6. As draft elements are completed, it is anticipated that City staff will hold one or more community 
meetings. The budget assumes that we will assist in the preparation of materials and participate in 
two such meetings.  Staff will prepare a summary of each community meeting including any 
proposed revisions to draft elements resulting from the community meeting.  The sequence and 
schedule for the meetings will be decided with staff at the meeting in Phase I. 

7.  At the conclusion of all community meetings and Planning Commission workshops, we will produce 
a review draft of the entire Comprehensive Plan for discussion at a final Planning Commission 
workshop.  

8. City staff will prepare one consolidated set of final review comments and revisions.  If necessary, we 
will hold one meeting with City staff to discuss the final review comments and revisions. 

9. We will revise the preliminary draft Plan and deliver a completed draft Plan.  Barring technical 
corrections, this will be the draft Comprehensive Plan for City Council review.   

Our phases, tasks, and workflow are illustrated on the following page. For each major task we anticipate 
developing technical work, collaborating at staff workshops, and supporting public engagement at 
meetings and online. Our workflow and tasks reflect two key philosophies: 

• Take an Integrated Collaborative Approach: We are a multi-disciplinary team with an approach 
that recognizes the interrelationships among land use and growth, community and economic 
development, service delivery, and fiscal and environmental sustainability. We have woven 
collaborative team meetings and public engagement into each step of the process to best shape 
the Comprehensive Plan.  

• Incorporate Strategic Planning Best Practices: Combining our collective team’s community 
planning and strategic planning practice, we will succinctly and graphically articulate community 
assets and challenges, the “big ideas” the community wants to accomplish, and goals and 
policies reflecting priorities and fiscal conditions.  

  

58 of 106



 CITY OF COVINGTON  
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 2015 

Stalzer and Associates / BERK Consulting, Inc.  FINAL DRAFT April 23, 2015 3 

 

 
 

  PUBLIC & AGENCY ENGAGEMENT STAFF WORKSHOPS TECHNICAL WORK 

Ki
ck

of
f &

 S
itu

at
io

n 
As

se
ss

m
en

t 

   Establish the sequence and 
schedule for delivery of Elements 

Establish a revised document 
format template 

Confirm and develop cross-
cutting framework policies or 
guiding principles 

Update Commerce Checklist 

Prepare a legislative review and 
public engagement process for 
Draft Plan 

  Launch meeting and review of 
Technical Work: schedule, 
template, cross-cutting policies, 
checklist, engagement 

Prepare preliminary Existing 
Conditions & Trends Report 

 Service Providers Meeting: CFP Existing Conditions Report & 
Trends 

Publish Draft Existing Conditions 
& Trends Report 
Prepare Elements 

  Selected Plan Elements Compile Draft Plan 

Prepare Implementation 
Strategy  
Prepare SEPA Review internal 
draft 

 Coordinate with Service 
Providers: CFP 

 Prepare Elements 

 Open House and Joint Elements 
Workshop  

All Elements Provide meeting support 

 

  Draft Plan, Implementation 
Strategy, SEPA Review 

 

 Draft Plan, Implementation 
Strategy, SEPA Review 

Draft Plan, Implementation 
Strategy, SEPA Review 

Publish SEPA Review  

Ad
op

tio
n 

of
 

Pl
an

 

 Planning Commission Review & 
Deliberation 

 Prepare hearing draft plan and 
respond to comments 

 

 City Council Review & 
Deliberation 

 Respond to comments 

WORK PLAN 

PHASE 1.  SITUATION ASSESSMENT AND PLAN BASICS 
Task 1-1:  Establish the sequence and schedule for delivery of preliminary draft elements  

Interactive Community 
Workshop 
Combined Public Open House in 
PC/CC Workshop 
Legislative Meetings  

59 of 106



 CITY OF COVINGTON  
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 2015 

Stalzer and Associates / BERK Consulting, Inc.  FINAL DRAFT April 23, 2015 4 

We will prepare a draft schedule and task sequence for City staff review. Following an initial project 
launch meeting with City staff we will prepare a revised schedule. We will track the schedule 
periodically, such as with the preparation of progress reports, and update the schedule as appropriate.  
Task 1-1 Budget: $1,390 
 
Task 1-2:  Confirm and develop cross-cutting framework policies or guiding principles  
Cross-cutting framework policies are alluded to in the preliminary draft plan but do not present a 
coherent relationship to individual Elements.  We will refine the cross-cutting framework policies and 
relate them clearly to the community vision and the plan. 
Task 1-2 Budget: $2,503 
 
Task 1-3:  Establish a revised document template 
The current Preliminary Draft Plan uses a template in InDesign. We will develop two revised 
Comprehensive Plan document templates for discussion with staff and decision during this phase.  Both 
templates will emphasize consistency in tables and figures as well as highlighting the cross-cutting 
themes and link to the Vision.  We will develop a map list and finalize the template with King County GIS 
staff and other Consultant team members. 
Task 1-3 Budget: $2,630 
 
Task 1-4:  Complete the Commerce Checklist to identify the changes needed to the existing draft for 
consistency with state, regional, and local laws and plans. 
We will update the Department of Commerce Checklist. The Preliminary Draft Plan Assessment 
(Appendix E) focuses on the Growth Management Act and goals and policies, but less on the Growth 
Management Act technical requirements, or the Puget Sound Regional Council’s (PSRC’s) VISION 2040, 
and Countywide Planning Policies; each Preliminary Draft element will be tested for consistency and 
areas of new focus. We will also review WSDOT’s Highway Program requirements. We will ensure 
compliance with PSRC Certification requirements related to the Transportation Element. 
Task 1-4 Budget: $2,376 
 
Task 1-5:  Complete the Existing Conditions Assessment (Appendix D). 
Appendix D in the draft document includes the beginnings of an Existing Conditions and Trends Report.  
For each Element, we will prepare a brief existing conditions and trends analysis. These individual 
Existing Conditions and Trends Reports will serve as the Element inventories and analyses and remain in 
an Appendix or be  incorporated by reference, leaving the Elements to be policy and concept focused. 
This approach has the added benefit of allowing for adoption of an updated appendix without revising 
the body of the plan.  Additional information will be provided to ensure compliance with new 
Countywide Planning Policies and GMA requirements as well as the Vision and community needs. The 
budget includes time to revise and compile the inventory but technical analysis is included under the 
level of effort for each element in Phase 2. 
Task 1-5 Budget: $4,706 
 
Task 1-6:  SEPA Strategies 
We will recommend non-project SEPA strategies following a review of the original Comprehensive Plan 
SEPA document and our knowledge of the citywide land capacity and transportation analysis contained 
in the Hawk Property Planned Action EIS. Based on our review, we anticipate the preparation of an 
expanded SEPA Checklist for the Comprehensive Plan Update with a Notice of Adoption (of the Hawk 
Property Planned Action EIS) and Determination of Non-Significance, or with an Addendum. Our 

60 of 106



 CITY OF COVINGTON  
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 2015 

Stalzer and Associates / BERK Consulting, Inc.  FINAL DRAFT April 23, 2015 5 

strategy will be based on our understanding of conditions, trends, and key concepts to be pursued in the 
Comprehensive Plan Update. The strategy may be revisited as we develop the plan. 
Task 1-6 Budget: $977 
 
Task 1-7:  Public Participation Strategy 
We will build upon the community storefront process and propose a strategy for garnering community 
input and participation during preparation of the Draft Plan.  We will prepare a memo with 
recommended strategies for review by City Staff and revise it accordingly. 
Task 1-7 Budget: $1,263 
 
Phase 1 Total Budget: $15,845 
 

PHASE 2.  COMPLETION OF THE DRAFT PLAN 
This phase includes the work necessary to have a completed draft Comprehensive Plan.  The sequence 
and schedule for each task will be decided with staff during Phase 1. 

Task 2-1: Fill in the gaps in the Land Use Element 
We will provide missing information and update data to current information, then streamline and clarify 
the discussion of the foundational growth estimates for 2035 and their relationship to growth targets 
and land capacity.  We will introduce more Covington-centric graphics as a means of portraying the 
relevance of the data and increase reader interest.  Finally, technical data will be consolidated into the 
Existing Conditions and Trends Report.  
Specific subtasks include: 
1. Address checklist topics not yet fully addressed in the Element (e.g. lands useful for public purposes, 

airport compatible uses, reference to Environmental and other elements, document no Resource lands of 
long-term significance, etc.) 

2. Integrate January 2015 Planning Commission and Staff edits: Land Use element policies- pointed out that 
there was no policy that highlighted or tied back to transportation issues constraining future land 
development, specifically that we need improvements on SR 516. (It’s a good point-We do have policies 
in the Transportation / CFP & Utilities Element that address this but there should be a policy and 
discussion of this topic in the LU Element that then cross references the Transportation and CFP 
elements for more detailed discussion and policy direction.) 

3. Integrate the Downtown Element and Town Center Plan into the Land Use Element and augment 
the discussion of the Town Center Plan’s successes and remaining steps with a robust 
implementation strategy. 

4. Integrate the Hawk Property Subarea Plan vision more directly into the Land Use Element, including 
implementation strategies. 

5. Update the capacity for employment and housing based on implementation experience with the 
Town Center and the recently-adopted Hawk Property Subarea Plan.  Existing and future land use 
data will be updated with current information.    

6. Clearly identify 2035 land use / growth assumptions 

7. Verify total versus net population and employment figures in element. 

61 of 106



 CITY OF COVINGTON  
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 2015 

Stalzer and Associates / BERK Consulting, Inc.  FINAL DRAFT April 23, 2015 6 

8. Clarify 2031 target and 2035 target extension in relation to King County Buildable Lands Report1, City’s 
own capacity estimates, and City market-based growth estimates per Hawk Property / Northern Gateway 
Study (citywide market-based analysis used for Hawk Property EIS).2

9. Coordinate with King County GIS staff and update the land use map and acre statistics.  

 Consider if based on Town Center 
Plan implementation if the growth estimates require any adjustment (and its effect on Transportation 
and Capital Facilities).  

10. Verify and add acre figures in text and add land use designation acres. 
11. Relate this Element to the Vision / cross-cutting topics from Introduction. 

12. Update the Future Land Use map FLUM (full size). 
13. Prepare an annexation policy (none are included in the draft document). 

14. Clarify integration of Natural Hazards Mitigation Element. 
Task 2-1 Budget: $4,780 

Task 2-2:  Fill in the Gaps in the Housing Element 
This Element is missing essential information.  The housing needs and characteristics inventory 
contained in the Existing Conditions and Trends Report will be summarized with appropriate graphics to 
provide background support for issues discussion and policies.  The housing needs analysis will be 
expanded and related to Countywide Planning Policies Housing Policies and State goals and policies.  
Finally, implementation strategies will be added. 
Specific subtasks include: 
1. Address local role in meeting regional housing needs for those earning less than 30% of area median 

income per Countywide Planning Policies. Address local role in meeting needs for above 30%.  
2. Reference the Human Services Master Plan and add housing Special Needs documentation (neither 

included in the draft document). 
3. Relate this Element to the Vision. 

4. Add cross-cutting goals of Healthy Communities including access to services and food as well as 
communities designed to promote physical activity.  

5. Include the STAR Community Index goals for equity, as appropriate.   
6. Integrate January 2015 Planning Commission and staff edits. 
Task 2-2 Budget: $5,909 

Task 2-3: Revise Transportation Element to document compliance with regional and State 
requirements and to evaluate the new multimodal LOS approach   
The Transportation Existing Conditions Memo and associated level of service (LOS) PowerPoint could be 
elaborated upon. Recommendations are there, but connective text is missing, along with key figures and 
data. The Transportation Existing Conditions Memo from Fehr & Peers is fairly narrow and does not 
present enough technical support for this Element or the Existing Conditions Report.  There is much 
                                                           
1 2014 Buildable Lands Report varied from the capacity estimates provided by the City/BERK to County. 
Not sure why they didn’t use the City numbers (most likely because there was no question the City could 
meet its targets). The County and City overall results are similar – that the City has plenty of capacity. 
2 City 2031 target is low, as is 2035 target by PSRC. The Hawk Property EIS developed citywide estimates 
of growth based on market analysis that is between target and capacity. Market levels of growth were 
allocated by TAZ based on capacity. Specifically identify market-based numbers are the 2035 growth 
numbers. Capacity is beyond that. We need to define the 2035 numbers upon which transportation and 
capital facilities, as well as housing and economic development, elements will be based. 

62 of 106



 CITY OF COVINGTON  
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 2015 

Stalzer and Associates / BERK Consulting, Inc.  FINAL DRAFT April 23, 2015 7 

information in the Hawk Property EIS that is citywide and can be summarize and reference as needed. 
Additionally, we understand from City staff that the City’s oncall transportation engineers have run 
some scenarios when the LOS policy was developed. The proposed approach to LOS has merit but many 
issues need to be addressed and the implications are not developed enough to inform choices. Our efforts 
assume that the City’s oncall transportation engineers will prepare the technical and model work under the 
direction of the Consultant team.  The Consultant team will focus on compliance, consistency, assumptions, 
policy direction, and implications described below, relying on the oncall consultant’s technical analysis. 
Specific subtasks include: 
1. Document areas of update based on PSRC Certification Checklist. 
2. Compile and incorporate, either directly or by reference, the transportation components of all relevant 

plans that have been developed by the City since the last major Comprehensive Plan update.  
3. Affirm land use estimates to be modeled (e.g. Town Center reallocation). 
4. Describe the Transportation vision and multimodal LOS approach. Issues to be resolved include:   

• How does corridor LOS for vehicles fit in with the corridor designations of high, medium, low for 
pedestrians, bicycles, and transit?  

• How would concurrency work?  
• What projects are needed to support the LOS?  
• How does that relate to impact fee basis today?  
• What does it mean for the Hawk Property Planned Action? 
•  What is the City’s approach to non-priority corridors?  

5. Evaluate the new multimodal LOS approach for implications regarding supporting growth, reducing 
capital costs, prioritizing capital projects, and ramifications to impact fees, development agreements and 
the Hawk Property Planned Action. Based on the identified ramifications and City direction, we will work 
with the City to determine what can be effectively accomplished within the present scope, budget and 
timeline, and which may require a phased approach. 

6. Coordinate and utilize DEA staff during this update process to assist in off-setting costs. We will 
coordinate with DEA to update travel demand model forecasts (e.g. to test any updated land use 
estimates such as for the Town Center), intersection and corridor operational analyses, and identification 
of future transportation improvement projects to reflect updates to the future land use map described in 
Task 5.2. We will review these results and incorporate the updated information into the Transportation 
Element. This analysis will also be included in the Phase 3 SEPA Review. 

7. Describe key issues and challenges.  
Task 2-3 Budget: $17,800 (Consultant team budget only; oncall transportation is separate) 

Task 2-4:  Update the Parks, Recreation and Open Space Element 
The City has a Parks, Recreation, and Open Space Plan and has retained consultants under separate 
contract to update the Parks Plan and develop a Park Impact Fee Study.  Our team will clarify 
discrepancies in current levels of service in the Comprehensive Plan, Parks Plan and Code as an interim 
placeholder, and put a summary of the Parks Plan in the Comprehensive Plan.  Staff will update Element 
next year when functional plan is completed (underway). 

1. Clarify level of service (per differences found at time of Hawk Property Subarea Plan). 
Specific subtasks include: 

2. Add placeholder language from current Parks, Recreation, and Open Space Plan.  
Task 2-4 Budget: $938 

Task 2-5:  Finish the Natural Environment Element 
Minimal work has been done on this Element in the draft plan document with the major deficiencies 
being the absence of a Best Available Science (BAS) review and follow-up consistency review of the 

63 of 106



 CITY OF COVINGTON  
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 2015 

Stalzer and Associates / BERK Consulting, Inc.  FINAL DRAFT April 23, 2015 8 

Critical Areas Regulations (CAR).  Additionally, the discussion of issues appears to be missing topics and 
does not relate back to the Commerce Checklist.  Given the recent Shoreline Master Program (SMP) 
work that pulled in and updated the CAR, we believe our efforts can be streamlined.  Per the current 
structure of this Element, the Stormwater Element and applicable information in the City’s new Hazard 
Mitigation Plan (HMP) through the BAS review will be incorporated.  
Specific subtasks include: 
1. Background information review & field assessment.

2. 

  Obtain and review pertinent existing maps, 
information, inventories, reports, etc. from the City and other resources, including Critical Areas 
Maps and SMP Inventories, Northern Gateway Study, Hawk Property Planned Action EIS, Natural 
Hazards Mitigation Plan, Tribal studies, and Third Party critical area reviews. Based on available 
information and identification of priority areas for investigation, conduct a one-day reconnaissance. 
Best Available Science review.

a. Wetlands; 

  Prepare a synthesis of BAS, utilizing scientific literature, existing 
reports (including documents produced during the City’s recent Shoreline Master Program update), 
and gray literature, following the hierarchy of approved BAS listed in WAC 365-195.  The following 
critical areas will be covered by this analysis: 

b. Critical Aquifer Recharge Areas; 
c. Fish and Wildlife Habitat Conservation Areas, including streams and lakes; 
d. Frequently Flooded Areas; and 
e. Geologically Hazardous Areas. 

3. Draft and Final BAS report

4. Gap Analysis.  Review the Natural Environment Policies to evaluate where existing policies are 
inconsistent with BAS or where additional policies need to be added. 

.  Prepare a draft report of findings, summarizing the BAS by topic area.  
No recommendations regarding the existing critical areas regulations will be made at this time.  We 
will finalize our report following one round of review by the City. 

Task 2-5 Budget: $18,000 

Task 2-6: Finish the Capital Facilities and Utilities Element 
As is the case with the Natural Environment Element, minimal substantive work has been done on this 
Element in the draft plan:  

• The background discussion does not clearly identify City role versus other agency providers’ roles  
• The inventory information is poorly documented: What are sources? Were provider plans reviewed 

for coverage, population/growth, and horizon year?  
• The analysis of current conditions appears incomplete. The lists of capital projects address 6-year but 

not 20-year plans (20-year can be more broad than 6-year but still needs to appear). 
• An analysis of demand and LOS is missing. Can LOS be met? Are there gaps? How do future planned 

capital projects relate to growth and LOS? Fold in the portions of the Hawk Property EIS analysis that 
are citywide in nature. Consider incorporation by reference of provider plans. 

 
Specific subtasks include: 
1. Complete the inventory and evaluation of City and non-City utility provider plans in the Existing 

Conditions Report and fold it into the Element text in a streamlined and organized manner. Provider 
plans to be reviewed include City, King County Metro, and Special District (e.g. Covington Water 
District, Soos Creek Water and Sewer District) functional plans for water, wastewater, solid waste, 
and power and telecommunications.  

2. Review the growth assumptions of these other plans in relation to the City’s growth assumptions. 
We will ensure internal consistency with other plan elements including land use capacity, housing 

64 of 106



 CITY OF COVINGTON  
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 2015 

Stalzer and Associates / BERK Consulting, Inc.  FINAL DRAFT April 23, 2015 9 

supply, areas of potential economic growth and development, as well as park and transportation 
improvements. 

3. Project future service and facility needs at the 6-year and 20-year horizons based on current levels 
of service and provide an analysis of any deficiencies. We will identify proposed locations and 
capacities of expanded or new facilities. We will identify how to coordinate facility timing and 
expenditures by identifying approximately when capital facilities, utilities and transportation 
improvements should be in place to allow growth and development. 

4. Interview in person or by phone each service provider to review any technical or policy questions 
gleaned from the review of current plans and any direction on new policies and planned capital 
facilities.  

5. Confirm the provider plans’ base year and verify Preliminary Draft inventory information for each 
service category, as well as expected demand for service based on the new planning horizon year. 
This information will be included in the Existing Conditions and Trends Report that can be 
referenced in the Element. To the extent feasible the analysis will be based on readily available 
technical reports prepared by the service providers. Discussions of conditions will be kept brief in 
the element text to meet the City’s desires for a concise reader friendly document. 

6. Review city prepared transportation fund projections and assess and project current funding sources 
for other City service areas based on the City budget, special district provider plans, and impact fees 
providing recommendations where needed. 

7. Work with the service providers to identify polices programs, or improvements to ameliorate 
deficiencies, current and future. Update and refine Element policies and implementation strategies 
accordingly 

8. Integrate cross-cutting climate change and sustainability principles such as energy and water 
conservation.  

9. Prepare and integrate maps and graphics to support the Element. 
Task 2-6 Budget: $16,800 

Task 2-7: Finish the Economic Development Element 
The draft of this Element essentially just needs completion.  We will further summarize / elicit key economic 
trends and describe City priorities, strategies, and successes in Economic Development in Town Center, Hawk 
Property, and alignment of City, business community, and citizens. 
Specific subtasks include: 
1. Review recent inventory and analysis information developed by ECONorthwest and ED Hovee on behalf 

of the City and update the Existing Conditions Report as appropriate, with summary trend and key ideas 
included in the Element.  

2. Integrate ED Hovee and ECONorthwest analysis into Existing Conditions Report and Element. Address 
City staff comments on ECONorthwest memo in the documents to which it is integrated (e.g. sources, 
figure numbering, etc.)  Note:  ECONorthwest had several track changes to the draft element from 
December 2014; have these been integrated into the January 2015 element? Some items such as 
implementation have not been included. 

3. Evaluate Preliminary Draft Economic Development Element Goals and Policies and ensure appropriate 
integration of the Town Center and the Hawk Property Subarea Plans. We will emphasize recent City 
actions and next steps in implementation. 

4. Tie element to Vision / cross-cutting topics from Introduction. 
5. Verify population and employment figures in relation to Land Use Element. 
6. Address implementation strategies – what are remaining priorities drawn from prior subarea plans and 

action plans? 
7. Integrate January 2015 Planning Commission and Staff edits: Asked if it would be appropriate to add 

some policy that supported the city lobbying or trying to influence some of the utility providers to make 

65 of 106



 CITY OF COVINGTON  
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 2015 

Stalzer and Associates / BERK Consulting, Inc.  FINAL DRAFT April 23, 2015 10 

changes in their practices and rate schedules.  (in regards to the high fees and requirements of Soos 
Creek that some commissioners had heard were deterrents in development in the city). 

Task 2-7 Budget: $2,487 

Task 2-8: Sustainability Principle Integration 
We will review preliminary draft Land Use, Natural Environment, and Capital Facilities and Utilities 
policies, programs, strategies and capital improvements. We will also review how the Preliminary Plan 
integrates City’s 2010 Stormwater Plan and National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) 
Program into these elements. We will review how cross-cutting sustainability principles such as low 
impact development, green infrastructure, and a healthy environment have been integrated. 
Task 2-8 Budget: $3,046 

Task 2-9: Shoreline Master Program Integration 
The City Staff will provide content and integrate it into the template for the Comprehensive Plan. City 
staff anticipates an abbreviated chapter with goals and incorporating by reference the Shoreline Master 
Program into the Comprehensive Plan.  
Task 2-9 Budget Estimate:  $605 Based on availability of funds from savings in other tasks 

Task 2-10:  Introduction 
Upon completion of all draft Elements we will revise the introduction to the Comprehensive Plan 
focusing on the City’s vision, mission, and citywide goals, the public participation process, and the 
organization of the plan as well as documenting the City’s assets and challenges and key themes as 
directed by the Planning Commission and staff.  A brief overview of GMA goals and other regional 
planning concepts that have guided the plan will be provided. 
Task 2-10 Budget: $1,867 

Task 2-11:  Implementation Strategy 
We will create an implementation strategy (including objectives and action steps) that can be part of or 
separate from the Comprehensive Plan Elements, such as a tool that identifies policy or regulatory 
commitments, funding and capital facility strategies, timeframes, and responsibilities. 
Task 2-11 Budget: $2,873 

Phase 2 Total Budget:  $74,500 excluding Task 2-9: Shoreline Master Program Integration 
  

66 of 106



 CITY OF COVINGTON  
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 2015 

Stalzer and Associates / BERK Consulting, Inc.  FINAL DRAFT April 23, 2015 11 

PHASE 3. SEPA REVIEW 
We review the City-staff prepared internal review draft of either a SEPA checklist or EIS Addendum as 
determined in cooperation with City staff consistent with the strategies in Phase 1. We will review City-
staff prepared notices for publication. The City staff will distribute the notices and SEPA document. 
Phase 3 Budget: $1,950 

PHASE 4. ADOPTION PROCESS 
We will assist the City in responding to comments and preparing the final plan for adoption.  

 
Phase 4 Budget: $2,200 

Total All Phases:  $94,495 excluding Task 2-9 Shoreline Master Program Integration 
Budget Summary 

Allowance for Project Expenses: $900 
Total Project Budget:  $95,395 

 
Quality Assurance 
Stalzer and Associates supported by BERK will prepare or peer review of all elements to ensure a 
coordinated Comprehensive Plan. Each element will reflect the template established in Phase 1.  

Document Transmittal Assumptions and Communication Protocols   
1. All documents will be transmitted in MS Word 2010 format.  Once finalized, the Elements will be 

integrated into an InDesign Template per Phase 1. 
2. All proposed revisions and comments will be transmitted as MS Word Track Changes, memoranda, 

and/or hand-written comments on the document transmitted digitally. 
3. We will transmit all documents via email from Bill and/or Lisa, as appropriate, to Ann Mueller with 

cc to Richard, Salina, Bill and/or Lisa. 
4. All documents from City staff will be transmitted via email from Ann Mueller to Bill and Lisa with cc 

to Richard and Salina. 
 

67 of 106



Exhibit B 
 

STALZER AND ASSOCIATES 
2015 SCHEDULE 

of 
STANDARD FEES  

and  
REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES 

 
 

 
Standard Fees:  Compensation to Stalzer and Associates and subconsultants for all services 
provided will be billed on the following schedule: 
  

Hourly Rate 
  

Bill Stalzer $175   
 
Reimbursable Internal Expenses:   
Internal office expenses will be billed at the following rates: 
Photocopying $0.10/page 

  
Reimbursable Outside Services: 
Outside services including, but not limited to, subconsultant services, word processing, printing, 
photocopying, delivery, graphic materials, and similar project-related expenses will be billed at 
actual cost plus ten per cent.   
 
Reimbursable Travel: 
Vehicle mileage will be billed at the mileage rate established by the Washington Office of Financial 
Management in effect when the mileage is incurred.   

68 of 106



 Consent Agenda Item C-5 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  April 28, 2015 
 
SUBJECT: AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AMENDMENT #2 TO 

THE AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES WITH CANBER CORPS FOR 
MAINTENANCE AT COVINGTON COMMUNITY PARK. 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Don Vondran, Public Works Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  
1. Amendment #2 to Agreement for Services with Canber Corps 
 
PREPARED BY:  Ross Junkin, Maintenance Supervisor 
 
EXPLANATION:  
On April 9, 2013 the City Council awarded the Covington Community Park (CCP) Maintenance 
Agreement to the lowest, most qualified bidder, Canber Corps, to provide maintenance services 
for the landscaping and grounds at Covington Community Park as outlined in the agreement.  In 
2014, we extended that agreement with Canber Corps for an additional year.  That extension 
ends April 30, 2015.   
 
During the second year of the contract with Canber Corps, we have noticed a significant decrease 
in the level of service that was being provided.  Some of the issues included fertilizing problems 
and overwatering that resulted in fungus in the athletic field, use of the wrong paint for striping 
the field that killed the grass and not securing the gate at park closings.  This required our 
maintenance staff to take on more responsibility such as striping, watering and closely 
monitoring fertilization.  Although these items were reduced from the contract with Canber, city 
maintenance staff has had to spend more and more time coordinating and maintaining aspects of 
the CCP maintenance.  This caused us to reevaluate the contract and send out a new request for 
bids.   
 
On April 16th, we received two bids for the CCP maintenance.  The two bids were as follows:  

Brickman Group $130,923.82 – includes $32,850 for daily opening/closing of gate 
Westgro Corp.  $123,238.20 – includes $31,755 for daily opening/closing of gate 

 
Since these bids are significantly higher than the original contract with Canber ($58,139.01) we 
are evaluating options and will present those options at a future Council meeting.  In the 
meantime, we need to continue with the maintenance at CCP and recommend a two month 
extension with Canber Corps in order to allow staff time to prepare a recommendation.  Staff 
will bring a new blue sheet to council for approval prior to the end of June. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
Not to extend the agreement and request that staff bring back a contract to award to lowest, most 
qualified bidder. 
 

69 of 106



 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
The amendment for two months includes the monthly maintenance as well as the annual field 
renovation for a total amount not to exceed $20,000.  These funds are included in the 2015 Parks 
Maintenance budget. 
  
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:              Ordinance            Resolutions       X     Motion         Other 
 

Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember _________________ 
seconds, to authorize the City Manager to execute Amendment #2 to the 
Agreement for Services with Canber Corps, in substantial format as 
Attachment 1 hereto, for maintenance at Covington Community Park. 

 
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, City Attorney, Finance Director 

70 of 106



  

CITY OF COVINGTON 
AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 

 
Amendment #2 

 
Between the City of Covington and Canber Corps 

 
That portion of Contract No. 1179-13 between the City of Covington and Canber Corps 
is amended as follows: 
 

1. Term of Agreement.  Section 3 of the Agreement shall be amended to 
extend the term of the Agreement until June 30, 2015. 

2. Compensation.   Section 4.1 of the Agreement shall be amended to 
increase the amount not to exceed to $228,000. 

 
All other provisions of the contract shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
Dated this 28th day of April, 2015. 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the day and year written 
above. 
 
CITY OF COVINGTON 
 
 
____________________________________ 
By: Regan Bolli 
Its: City Manager 
 
 
Attest:       Approved as to form: 
 
 
____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Sharon Scott, City Clerk    Sara Springer, City Attorney 
 
 
CANBER CORPS 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
By:  
Its:  

ATTACHMENT 1

71 of 106



 Consent Agenda Item C-6 
 Covington City Council Meeting 

Date:  April 28, 2015 
 
SUBJECT: RATIFY THE CITY MANAGER’S EXECUTION OF THE AGREEMENT WITH 

BRICKMAN GROUP FOR LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE. 
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Don Vondran, PE, Public Works Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  
1.  Landscape Maintenance Agreement 
 
PREPARED BY: Don Vondran, PE, Public Works Director 
 Shellie Bates, Programs Supervisor/Public Works 
 
EXPLANATION:  
Last year we needed to re-bid our landscape services contract for streets and parks since it was 
expiring.  We awarded the contract to the lowest bidder and after a few months of observing the 
contractor’s work, we determined they were not able to meet the specifications of the contract.  
We terminated the contract and decided, based on the experience of the seasonal help that we 
had at the time, we could bring the work in-house by backfilling with two (2) additional seasonal 
maintenance workers.  We felt this was the best solution at the time since it would take up to two 
(2) months to get re-bid, award and get a new contractor mobilized.  We continued doing the 
landscaping work with city crews through the remainder of last year.  During the 2015 budget 
process, we planned to continue with city crews doing the landscape maintenance based on the 
following: 

1. The work could be completed with two (2) nine-month seasonal maintenance workers, 
one of which had experience in landscaping and expressed interest in returning in 2015. 

2. The costs for bringing in-house were close to the amount to continue to contract out. 
3. We would be able to start doing the landscape maintenance prior to the “growing” season 

instead of starting mid-season. 
 
However, as the new year rolled around things were not working out as planned.  The seasonal 
maintenance worker notified us that he was not going to be able to return, he had other work that 
he was going to be doing.  In addition, we had a very warm winter (or early spring) that caused 
the weeds and shrubs to begin to grow much sooner than typical.  And finally, we were having 
problems getting applicants to actually apply for seasonal work. 
 
In February, we determined that we should request bids for the landscape maintenance services 
in order to re-evaluate cost versus benefit.  We determined that we could still handle the parks 
maintenance landscaping work and only needed to bid out the street landscape maintenance.  
This was primarily the medians and planter strips (and roundabouts) of SE 272nd Street, 168th 
Avenue SE, SE 256th Street, 164th Avenue SE, 180th Avenue SE and SE Wax Road. 
 
On March 25th, we received four (4) bids (see below) for the landscape maintenance.  The lowest 
most qualified bid was from Brickman Group in the amount of $64,808.  Brickman had provided 
these services for us in the past (contract had expired in 2013) and had done a good job.  The 
contractor indicated they would be ready to mobilize on April 13th. 
 

72 of 106



The Public Works Department sent out an invitation to bid to all landscape maintenance 
contractors listed on the Municipal Research and Services Center (MRSC) Roster.  The email 
was sent out to 101 contractors.  Twenty one (21) contractors requested the bid specifications 
packet and we received bids from four (4) companies as shown below. 
 

Company Name Bid Proposal 
Total Annual Amount 

At Work! $90,391.67 
The Brickman Group, LTD, LLC $64,808.14 
Total Landscape Corporation $144,438.00 
Westgro Corp. $85,398.72 

 
The low bidder will maintain the landscaping in Covington as outlined in the attached 
agreement.  The continuous level of landscape maintenance will provide a well maintained 
aesthetic downtown area and arterials. 
 
This agreement calls for renewal each year, for a term of up to three years, provided the 
contractor meets performance standards and both parties agree to the renewal. 
 
Given the pressing need for the new contractor to begin landscape maintenance work as soon as 
possible, the City Manager executed the attached contract with Brickman Group on April 6, 
2015, and we are now asking for the council’s ratification of that contract, effective the date of 
the City Manager’s execution. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
Not ratify the contract and re-advertise to project later. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
The 2015 budget includes an approved decision card in the amount of $74,580 for two nine-
month seasonal maintenance workers.  However, the split for the costs were 75% Streets and 
25% Parks Maintenance.  This equated to $55,935 from the Street fund and $18,645 in the Parks 
Fund.  Brickman Group’s bid of $64,808 (contract set for “not to exceed” $65,000 – see attached 
agreement) is all counted towards the Street fund.  As mentioned above, the remaining 
maintenance staff (four (4) full-time and four (4) seasonals – not hiring the additional nine- 
month seasonals) will include the parks landscape maintenance (not including CCP maintenance 
– separate contract) in their 2015 work plan.  Therefore we will be exceeding the budget in the 
Street fund but we will be under budget in the Parks fund.  In addition, the bid is set up to be a 
monthly maintenance cost of $5,400 per month.  Since the contract did not start until April 13, 
2015, the actual yearly cost to the Street fund in 2015 is approximately $45,900 ($5,400 per 
month @ 8.5 months).  Therefore, we will not be exceeding the budget in 2015 and we will just 
need to make an adjustment in 2016 to account for a full year. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:              Ordinance            Resolutions       X     Motion         Other 
 

Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember _________________ 
seconds, to ratify the City Manager’s execution of the Agreement with 
Brickman Group for landscape maintenance. 

 
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, City Attorney, Finance Director 

73 of 106



ATTACHMENT 1

74 of 106



75 of 106



76 of 106



77 of 106



78 of 106



79 of 106



80 of 106



81 of 106



82 of 106



83 of 106



84 of 106



85 of 106



86 of 106



87 of 106



88 of 106



89 of 106



1

2

3

74 65

8

Pipe Lake

CITY OF COVINGTON
Landscape Maintenance

Areas .

O:\Covington_GIS_Library\PROJECT_FOLDER\Public_Works\Maintenance_Routes\
landscape_maintenance_map\landscape_maintenance.mxd

Created By: Shawn Buck 03/02/2015

Street (Right of Way) Sites

City Limits

EXHIBIT B

90 of 106



Agenda Item 1 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  April 28, 2015 
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSS MANDATORY GARBAGE COLLECTION.  
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Regan Bolli, City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Comparison for Mandatory Solid Waste Services Spreadsheet 
 
PREPARED BY:  Don Vondran, PE, Public Works Director 
                              Shellie Bates, Programs Supervisor 
 
EXPLANATION: 
On January 31, 2015, at the council’s Annual Strategic Planning Summit, the council discussed 
mandatory garbage, recycling, and yard waste collection in Covington and requested that staff 
research the impacts and provide a follow-up presentation. 
 
A. Rates Comparison 
Since the council made that request, public works staff has been working with the finance 
department and Republic Services, the city’s solid waste contractor, to determine how the 
adoption of an ordinance making garbage, recycling, and yard waste services mandatory will 
affect the respective rates for each (as compared with the current rates for each).  To note: 
Republic Services includes recycling service with garbage service, therefore if garbage service is 
made mandatory, recycling service will be automatically included with the garbage service.  
Yard/food waste service is separate from the garbage and recycling service.  
 
The attached spreadsheet shows rates for current services, rates for mandatory services, and the 
additional revenue that would be generated from additional citizens subscribing to garbage and 
yard waste services if made mandatory, as well as estimated revenue from an increase in the 
utility tax collected. (Attachment 1)  
 
B. Other Cities with Mandatory Collection 
Numerous cities have adopted mandatory solid waste collection, including Auburn, Kent, 
Renton, Lynnwood, Puyallup, and Shelton. The City of Kent went to mandatory garbage and 
yard waste services several years ago. After making their garbage collection mandatory, they 
noticed a decrease in code enforcement cases regarding garbage, including dumping in areas 
around the city such as storm ponds and green belts. This was an added benefit in terms of 
compliance with their National Pollutant Discharge and Elimination System (NPDES) permit. 
Based on their experience, if the council decides to move to mandatory garbage collection, Kent 
staff suggested developing a six-month education plan to help current and non-subscribers to 
better understand the reason for and benefits of mandatory collection. They also recommended 
having code enforcement staff involved from the beginning.  
 
C. Next Steps 
City staff is requesting that the council select one of the options provided below to direct next 
steps regarding the possible adoption of mandatory solid waste services: 

91 of 106



 
Option 1: Direct staff to prepare for council consideration a draft ordinance making residential 
garbage, recycling, and yard waste services mandatory within the city limits. 
 
Option 2: Direct staff to prepare for council consideration a draft ordinance making residential 
garbage and recycling service mandatory, but leaving yard waste service as optional. 
 
Option 3: Direct staff to no longer pursue any options for mandatory solid waste services and 
allow the city’s current solid waste services and regulations to remain unchanged.  
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
NA 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
The estimated annual revenue increase in utility tax from mandatory garbage and yard waste 
would be about $35,000, based on the current utility tax rate of 6%.   
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance         Resolution        Motion     X    Other 
 

STAFF SEEKS COUNCIL CONSENSUS TO SELECT 
ONE OPTION AS PRESENTED ABOVE. 

 
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager; City Attorney, Finance Director 

92 of 106



ATTACHMENT 1

Description Service Level
Existing 
Service 

Fee

Current 
Residents 
Paying for 

Service

Current Yearly 
Total

Mandatory 
Rate 

Reduction

Mandatory 
Service

Fee

Covington 
Households

Total Fees with 
Mandatory 
Collection

Increased Fees 
with 

Mandatory 
Collection

Estimated 
Revenue 

increase with 
current Utility 

Tax (6%)

Estimated 
Revenue 

increase with 
Utility Tax 

(12%)*

Weekly Residential 
Curbside (includes 
embedded EOW 
recycling)

32-gallon cart  $    17.66 4,960  $    1,051,123.20  $            0.12  $        17.54 6,368  $   1,340,336.64  $   289,213.44  $     17,352.81  $   190,998.61 

Yard/Food Waste Service 
(EOW)

96-gallon cart  $       7.70 2,998  $       277,015.20  $            0.13  $          7.57 6,368  $      578,469.12  $   301,453.92  $     18,087.24  $     36,174.47 

 $  1,328,138.40  $ 1,918,805.76 
 $   35,440.04  $ 227,173.08 

 $     156,293.00   2014 Solid Waste Utility Tax Received 
 $       79,688.30 Estimated portion of Solid Waste Utility Tax from residential customers

using current yearly total (above)

City of Covington
Comparison for Mandatory Garbage or Garbage and Yard Waste Services

* The revenue increase is the amount above what was received in 2014 ($156,293) plus the 12% increase in the new customers

93 of 106



Agenda Item 2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  April 28, 2015 
 
SUBJECT: PRESENTATION UPDATE FOR THE JENKINS CREEK PARK PEDESTRIAN 

AND ADA IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT DESIGN  
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Regan Bolli, City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
1. None 
 
PREPARED BY:  Robert Lindskov, City Engineer 
 
EXPLANATION: 
As part of the 2014 King County Community Development Block Grant program the City of 
Covington was allocated federal funding in the amount of $418,000 for Pedestrian and ADA 
path improvements within Jenkins Creek Park.   
 
The path will restore and enhance the existing trail system within Jenkins Creek Park, re-open 
the pedestrian connections to Jenkins Creek Elementary School, the Home Depot commercial 
area, and the downtown area. 
 
The primary goals of the project are to remove architectural barriers, allow access for seniors, 
disabled individuals, and students, while widening and paving approximately 1,225 feet of 
existing path in Jenkins Creek Park.  The project includes construction of a new bridge over 
Jenkins Creek, constructed to allow maintenance vehicles access to the park at the west entrance.  
It includes a widened and paved path, replacing the existing temporary (previously rotten) 
pedestrian foot bridge, and a SWM project addressing storm water runoff into Spring Pond. 
 
The Public Works group has been in coordination with our Parks group, we have met with the 
Parks Commission on multiple occasions and we provided a public forum on January 21, 2015 to 
address neighborhood concerns. 
 
Staff will present a few of the elements in the current 90% design.  The hope is that the current 
design addresses the Council’s vision and that we may proceed with advertising for construction. 

  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Presentation only  
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:   
 

PROVIDE DIRECTION TO STAFF. 
 
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, City Attorney, Finance Director 

94 of 106



Agenda Item 3  
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: April 28, 2015 
 
SUBJECT:  CONSIDER RESOLUTION IN STRONG SUPPORT OF THE STATE 

LEGISLATURE’S 2015 TRANSPORTATION INVESTMENT PACKAGE 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Regan Bolli, City Manager                                      
                                          
ATTACHMENT(S): 
1. Proposed Resolution in Strong Support of the Washington State Legislature’s 2015 

Transportation Investment Package 
2. AWC “City Legislative Priorities” document  
 
PREPARED BY:  Regan Bolli, City Manager 
 
EXPLANATION: 
The Washington State Legislature is currently considering a 16-year, $15 billion package of 
transportation infrastructure investments. The package includes a direct gas-tax distribution to 
local governments and the opportunity to secure funding for a connection from 204th Ave SE to 
Highway 18 and widening of SR 516 from Jenkins Creek to 185th Avenue SE. 
 
The City Council’s 2015 Legislative Agenda states:  

 
Transportation Investment Package: Strongly support adoption of a transportation 
investment package that funds SR 516, distributes gas tax revenue to cities and counties, and 
authorizes King County to impose a 1.5% motor vehicle excise tax (MVET) for roads and 
transit. 

 
State Route 516 funding is not possible without the state legislature passing a robust 
transportation investment package, and the current package being considered is consistent with 
the council’s legislative agenda.  Therefore, staff and the city’s lobbyist recommend that the 
council join other cities and pass a resolution in strong support of the state legislature’s 2015 
Transportation Investment Package. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:  Do not pass the resolution. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Staff time. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance     X  Resolution         Motion         Other 
 

Council member ____________ moves, Council member _________________ 
seconds, to pass a resolution, in substantial form as that attached hereto, in 
strong support of the Washington State Legislature passing a comprehensive 
transportation investment package during the 2015 legislative session. 
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Attorney; Finance Director. 

95 of 106



RESOLUTION NO. 15-03 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, 
WASHINGTON, IN STRONG SUPPORT OF THE 
WASHINGTON STATE LEGISLATURE’S 2015 
TRANSPORTATION INVESTMENT PACKAGE 

  
 

WHEREAS, a healthy transportation system is a critical foundation of our state and local 

economies and our quality of life, as well as our global position as the nation’s most trade-

dependent state; and 

WHEREAS, Washington state’s transportation system is suffering from disrepair, with a 

backlog of maintenance and preservation needs, and, data shows that without any new 

investments, more than half the pavement on o ur state roads and highways will be in poor 

condition by 2023; and 

WHEREAS, failing roads and bridges, congested highway corridors, and bottlenecked 

interchanges undermine the mobility of vehicles, buses, and freight-carriers to transport people 

and goods; and 

WHEREAS, the Connecting Washington Task Force released a report in early 2012, 

identifying $50 billion in unfunded transportation needs and recommending an investment of $21 

billion in state funding during the next 10 years for maintenance, preservation, and strategic 

investments; and 

 WHEREAS, investing in maintaining and upgrading our transportation system is a 

positive step the state legislature can take to catalyze construction jobs, enhance freight mobility 

for our ports, and create a pathway for retaining and growing new jobs for key industry sectors; 

and 

ATTACHMENT 1

96 of 106



WHEREAS, through SB 5987, S B 5988, and related bills, the 2015 Washington State 

Legislature is considering a 16-year, $15 bi llion package of transportation infrastructure 

investments; and 

WHEREAS, this package provides critical funding for key highway corridor projects 

throughout the state, including the opportunity to secure funding for a connection from 204th Ave 

Southeast to Highway 18 and widening of State Route 516 from Jenkins Creek to 185th Avenue 

Southeast; and 

WHEREAS, the transportation package also provides a direct gas tax distribution that 

will provide new funding each year for the City of Covington to maintain local roadways and 

arterials and to leverage existing funding; and 

WHEREAS, the package also includes local transportation financing options that cities 

and counties can submit to their voters for transportation improvements in their communities; 

and 

WHEREAS, the transportation package additionally invests in grant programs that are 

vital for cities and counties, including the Transportation Investment Board (TIB), the Freight 

Mobility Strategic Investment Board (FMSIB), “Complete Streets,” Safe Routes to Schools, and 

Bicycle-Pedestrian Safety; and 

WHEREAS, the package also includes direct funding allocations for transit agencies, 

including King County Metro Transit, that would otherwise have to make drastic cuts in routes 

that carry people to work sites and serve local communities; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Covington strongly encourages the Washington State Legislature 

to enact a transportation investment package during the 2015 S ession to create jobs, relieve 

congestion, support our businesses, and maintain our quality of life. 

97 of 106



BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Covington, King County, 

Washington, as follows: 

Section 1.  The Covington City Council takes an official position in strong support of a 

comprehensive state transportation investment package, including direct funding and funding 

options for local governments. 

Section 2.  T he Covington City Council strongly encourages the Washington State 

Legislature to approve and enact the current transportation package, comprised of SB 5987, SB 

5988, and related bills, during the 2015 legislative session. 

 PASSED in open and regular session on this 28th day of April, 2015.  

        
 
       ___________________________________ 
       MARGARET HARTO, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTESTED: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Sharon Scott, City Clerk 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Sara Springer, City Attorney 
 
 

98 of 106



Dave Williams
Director of Government Relations  
davew@awcnet.org
360.753.4137 • 1.800.562.0149

2015City Legislative Priorities

Washington’s 281 cities and towns are where most residents live, work, learn, and play. Cities recognize the
serious funding challenges facing the state involving the need to adequately fund quality schools and maintain
economically viable communities. Cities face many of these same challenges and pledge to partner with the
Legislature and Governor to find ways to adequately fund both state and local priorities.

Shared Revenue

Transportation
AWC is now following how legislators respond to our 
2015 priorities and other city issues and sharing this 
information with our members.

Maintain the revenue sharing partnership 
between the state and cities and restore local 
liquor revenue. Sharing of these revenues is the 
product of a longstanding partnership, and without 
the promise of this revenue, cities would have 
sought other local options and authorities. 

Support HB 1517 and SB 5896 - restoring local 
liquor revenue.

Adopt a multi-modal transportation package that 
addresses city needs. Like the state, cities have 
insufficient funding to maintain and enhance critical 
transportation infrastructure. We urge passage of 
a statewide transportation revenue package that 
includes direct distribution of gas tax revenues to 
cities at a percentage that reflects the actual amount 
of travel that occurs on city streets; an array of 
local transportation revenue options; and increased 
funding for programs that benefit cities, including 
the Transportation Improvement Board, Safe Routes 
to Schools, Bicycle and Pedestrian grants, Complete 
Streets, transit, and freight mobility. 

Support HB 1593 and SB 5813 - local 
transportation revenue options.

2/6/15

awcnet.org

Property Tax
Consider replacing the 1% property tax cap with 
an annual limit that accounts for inflation and 
population growth. A local option would balance 
the public’s desire for property tax limits with the 
reality of keeping pace with funding service needs. 

Continue to educate legislators about the 
constraints on revenue sources.

Marijuana
Fund critical criminal justice needs by sharing 
a portion of the excise tax on recreational 
marijuana. The state and local governments must 
partner to respond to the legalization of marijuana, 
including support for enforcement, prevention, 
and education efforts. We must also appropriately 
regulate medical marijuana while maintaining 
patient access. 

Support SB 5417, provides revenue sharing for 
cities and SB 5052 (proposed sub), reconciles 
medical/recreational marijuana.

Infrastructure
Restore the state’s commitment to public 
infrastructure investment. To keep Washington 
moving forward and to keep up with demand and 
regulatory requirements we need on-going and 
reliable funding for programs like the Public Works 
Assistance Account, the Centennial Clean Water 
Fund and the Model Toxics Control Account. 

Support HB 1661 and HB 1992 - restore funding 
for the Public Works Trust Fund.

ATTACHMENT 2

99 of 106



Agenda Item 4  
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: April 28, 2015  
 
SUBJECT:  CONSIDER POLICY FOR USE OF CITY SEAL AND LOGO 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Karla Slate, Communications and Marketing Manager 
                                          
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Proposed Policy for Use of City Seal and Logo 
 
PREPARED BY:  Karla Slate, Communications and Marketing Manager 
 
EXPLANATION: 
On May 27, 2014, t he council passed Ordinance 08-14, which adopted the new city logo and 
tagline. Upon passage, the ordinance was codified under Chapter 1.20 of the Covington 
Municipal Code.  
 
Though the city adopted the new city logo, the city currently has no official policy regarding the 
approved use of the new city logo or the city seal. Accordingly, the council asked staff to 
propose a policy to direct the intent and appropriate use of the city’s seal and logo. The council 
generally discussed the use of the city’s seal and logo at the last regular council meeting, and 
staff has incorporated the council’s feedback in to the attached proposed policy. (Attachment 1) 
 
Generally, the proposed policy states that the city’s seal, as the historical and official mark of the 
city, would be used for official purposes, including documents requiring an official seal or flag, 
and for mayoral and council use. The seal would also remain behind the council dais. 
Conversely, the proposed policy clarifies that the city logo, as the mark of the current identity of 
the city, is to be used on city vehicles, equipment, signage, website, correspondence, as well as 
used to promote city programs, events, initiatives, and sponsorships, etc. Specific use of the city 
logo is governed by the city’s brand guidelines. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
Request staff to amend the attached proposed policy. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
N/A 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance         Resolution        X    Motion            Other 
 

Councilmember ____________ moves, Councilmember ______________ 
seconds to approve the policy for use of the city’s seal and logo, in substantial 
form as attached hereto. 
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, City Attorney 

100 of 106



 

City of Covington 
16720 SE 271st St. Suite 100 
Covington, WA 98042 
 
City Hall – 253.480.2400 
www.covingtonwa.gov 
 

 

CITY OF COVINGTON  
POLICY FOR USE OF CITY SEAL AND LOGO 

REFERENCE: Chapter 1.20 Covington Municipal Code (CMC); Ordinance 08-14; Ordinance 40-97. 

 

PURPOSE 

To establish policy and procedures regarding the use of the City of Covington seal and logo. The seal and 
logo are considered symbols of the authority and jurisdiction of the city, as well as create a strong 
identity and legacy for the city, and, as such, are valuable assets of the city and its citizens. This policy 
desires to ensure that only appropriate uses are made of the city’s seal and logo. 

 

POLICY 

1. Generally 

1.1. The City of Covington seal and the city logo are the property of the City of Covington, for the 
purpose of certifying and identifying official business and communications of the city. 

 

1.2. The city seal and logo shall be used for official purposes only, or as authorized by the city 
manager or his/her designee. 
 

2. City Seal. The city seal is the historical and official mark of the city.  
 

2.1. The city clerk shall be the official custodian of the official seal for the city. 
 

2.2. The city clerk or designee is authorized to use the city seal on any ordinance, resolution, 
proclamation, commendation, certificate or other instrument approved by the city council or executed 
by the mayor or other city officers or officials. 
 

2.3. The city clerk or designee is authorized to use the city seal to authenticate official documents in 
the conduct of official city business. 
 

2.4. The city seal, as the official symbol of the city, will be displayed behind the city council dais in 
city council chambers.  

 

3. City Logo. The city logo is a recognizable mark that demonstrates the current identity of the city 
and links the city to the public.  
 

ATTACHMENT 1

101 of 106



3.1. The city logo and tagline is managed by the City of Covington’s Executive Department. 
Authorized use of the city logo and tagline is governed by the City of Covington Brand Guidelines 
document.  
 

3.2. The city logo will be used on city vehicles, equipment, and signage. 
 

3.3. The city logo will be used in general connection with official City of Covington correspondence, 
including the city website and social media pages, and to identify and promote city services, programs, 
initiative partnerships, events, and sponsorships in brochures, publications, insignias, postings, 
pamphlets, etc.  
 

3.4. All non-city use of the city logo requires city authorization.   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

102 of 106



  
Covington City Council Meeting 

           Date:  April 28, 2015 

 
DISCUSSION OF  

FUTURE AGENDA TOPICS: 
 
 
 

7:30 a.m., Wednesday, May 6, 2015 Special Meeting – 
Listening Session with Kentlake High School Students 

 
6:00 p.m., Tuesday, May 12, 2015 Special Meeting – Joint 
Study Session with Economic Development Council and 

Covington Chamber of Commerce Board 
 

7:00 p.m., Tuesday, May 12, 2015 Regular Meeting 
 
 

(Draft Agendas Attached) 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

103 of 106



 
 
 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 

Kentlake High School Performing Arts Center 
21401 SE Falcon Way, Kent WA 98042 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
 

Wednesday, May 6, 2015 – 7:30 a.m. 
 
 
CALL CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING TO ORDER 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
ITEM FOR DISCUSSION 
1. Listening Session to Receive Student Comments on the Town Center Plan 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, 
not the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes 
per speaker.  Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
ADJOURN 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act – Reasonable Accommodations Provided Upon Request a minimum of 24 hours in advance 
(253-480-2400) 
 
 

Draft 
as of 04/24/15 

 

104 of 106

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�


 
 
 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 

CITY COUNCIL JOINT STUDY SESSION WITH ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL 
& COVINGTON CHAMBER OF COMMERCE BOARD 
Council Chambers – 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
 

Tuesday, May 12, 2015 – 6:00 p.m. 
                                                                         
GENERAL INFORMATION: 
The study session is an informal meeting involving discussion between and among the City Council, 
Commissioners, and city staff regarding policy issues.  Study sessions may involve presentations, 
feedback, brainstorming, etc., regarding further work to be done by the staff on key policy matters. 
 
CALL CITY COUNCIL JOINT STUDY SESSION TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
ITEM(S) FOR DISCUSSION 
1. Update on Initiatives (_______) 
2. Working with City of Maple Valley (_______) 
3. Joining the Economic Development Council of Seattle and King County (EDC) (_____) 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, 
not the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes 
per speaker.  Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
ADJOURN 
 
 
 
 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act – Reasonable Accommodations Provided Upon Request a minimum of 24 hours in advance 
(253-480-2400) 
 
 
 
 

*Note* A Regular Council meeting will follow at approximately 7:00 p.m. 

Draft 
as of 04/24/15 

 

105 of 106

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�


 
 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
Tuesday, May 12, 2015                                                                                                        City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                                            16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
Note:  A Joint Meeting with the Economic Development Council and Covington Chamber of Commerce Board is 

scheduled from 6:00 to 7:00 p.m. 

CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION  

• National Public Works Week Proclamation – May 17-23, 2015 (Vondran) 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, 
not the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes 
per speaker.  Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  April 28, 2015 Special Joint Study Session with Human Services Commission and April 28, 

2015 Regular Meeting (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-3. Appoint Voting Delegate for Puget Sound Regional Council General Assembly Meeting (Bolli) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
1. Discuss City Insurance for Councilmembers (Bolli) 
2. 2015 First Quarter Financial Report (Hendrickson) 

 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – if needed 
 
ADJOURN 
 
 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act – Reasonable Accommodations Provided Upon Request a minimum of 24 hours in advance 
(253-480-2400) 

Draft 
as of 4/23/2015 

 

106 of 106

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�

	04-28-2015 Regular Meeting Agenda
	Tuesday, April 28, 2015                                                                                                        City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	PUBLIC COMMUNICATION

	Consent Item C-1 Green Sheet 04-28-2015 Green Sheet Minutes Approval
	Consent Agenda Item C-1

	Consent Item C-1 Attachment 03.24.2015 Regular Meeting Minutes
	Consent Item C-2 Green Sheet 04-28-2015 Voucher Green Sheet
	Consent Agenda Item C-2

	Consent Item C-2 Attachment 1
	Consent Item C-2 Attachment 2
	Consent Item C-3 Green Sheet BS_04-28-15_Final Acceptance of Aquatic Center Roofing Project_SBSEdit
	Consent Agenda Item C-3

	Consent Item C-3 Attachment 1 2015-4-28 Notice of Completion Form
	Sheet1

	Consent Item C-4 Green Sheet FINAL Blue Sheet Stalzer Contract Comp Plan Update 2015
	Consent Agenda Item C-4

	Consent Item C-4 Attachment 1 FINAL Prof Srvcs Agrmt_Stalzer_Comp Plan Update 2015_SBS Edit_040815_Clean Copy BS
	Consent Item C-4 Attachment 1 Exhibit A FINAL Exh A Scope of Work Covington Comp Plan Update Stalzer 041415
	Consent Item C-4 Attachment 1 Exhibit B FINAL Exh B Schedule of Fees and Reimbursable Expenses 041415
	Consent Item C-5 Green Sheet 04-28-15 CCP Maintenance Blue Sheet
	Consent Item C-5 Attachment 1 04-28-15  CCP Maintenance Amendment 2 - Canber Corps
	CITY OF COVINGTON
	By: Regan Bolli
	CANBER CORPS
	By:

	Consent Item C-6 Green Sheet 04-28-15 Landscape Maintenance Blue Sheet
	Consent Item C-6 Attachment 1 04-28-15 Landscape Maintenance Contract
	Item 1 Blue sheet 04-28-15 Mandatory Garbage Blue Sheet
	Item 1 Attachment 1 04-28-15 Mandatory Rates Comparison
	Sheet1

	Item 2 blue Sheet 04-28-15 Jenkins Creek Park Design Options
	Agenda Item 2

	Item 3 Blue Sheet
	Agenda Item 3

	Item 3 Attachment 1 RESO_04-28-15_Support of St Leg 2015 Trans Pkg_SBSEDIT_CLEAN
	Item 3 Attachment 2 AWC_LegPriorities
	Item 4 Blue sheet BS_04-28-15_Policy for Use of City Seal and Logo_SBSEDIT
	Agenda Item 4

	Item 4 Attachment 1 CITY SEAL AND CITY LOGO USAGE POLICY
	Future Agenda Cover Sheet for Two Meetings
	05-06-2015 Special Meeting @ Kentlake High School Agenda
	Wednesday, May 6, 2015 – 7:30 a.m.
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA

	05-12-2015 Special Joint Meeting w-Chamber & CEDC Agenda
	Tuesday, May 12, 2015 – 6:00 p.m.
	ROLL CALL
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA

	05-12-2015 Regular Meeting Agenda
	Tuesday, May 12, 2015                                                                                                        City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA




